P S Upadhye and Co

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPCRT
To the Members of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes In equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Financial Statements”).

~In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS"} prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss {including other comprehensive
income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
~appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

3. Material uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded, the company has incurred
net cash loss during the year ended March 31, 2022 and previous years and the Company’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets as at March 31, 2022. These conditions indicate the existence of a
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material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. However, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern
basis for the reasons stated in the Note No. 4.12 of financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated,.

If, based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Combanies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting -
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6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than feor one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlymg transactlons
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, ‘




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicabie, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless faw or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication,

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by The Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure A,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

B. Asrequired by section 143 (3} of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The Company has no branch offices whose accounts are audited by branch auditors;

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {Including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

e} In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and the rules prescribed there under, as
amended;

f)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act. TN




g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financia! controls with respect to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the company being private limited
company, the said clause is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

fif.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financiai position in
its Financial Statements;

The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
having any material foreseeabie losses, for which provision was required.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity {(“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)} have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity {(“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shail, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf g Ultimate

Beneficiaries;




{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company’ Board of Director has not proposed any dividend for the financial year
covered under Audit. The Company had not paid dividend in respect of previous

financial year.

For P S Upadhye & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.:128679W

e

CA Padmanabh S Upadhye
Proprietor

Membership No.: 127913
UDIN: 22127913AIRCIESS5],
Place: Pune _

Date: May 9, 2022




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 9 A under the heading “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report on even date:

(i}

(ii)

{fii)

(iv)

{v)

a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property Plant and Equipment (“PPE")

b) The Company’s PPE have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is & regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
-the size of the company and the nature of jts assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification,

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the
records provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising alf the immovable properties of
land and buildings which are freehold and disclosed in the financial statements, are heid in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

¢) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

a) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of £ 5 crore, in aggregate,
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable,

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans,
investments, guarantees and securities.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.




{vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed

b)

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Central Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues which
have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the
day they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Income-tax, GST and other material statutery dues in arrears were
outstanding as at balance sheet date for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961},

a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared
wiilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3({ix}{c)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable. . .




(x}

{xi)

(xii)

{xiii}

{xiv)

{xv)

{xvi}

Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations
givento us

a) No fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b} We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii} of the Order is not
applicable,

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

a} The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and {b) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment

Company (CIC) and there is no CIC within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi} (c} and (d) of the
Order is not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets,
payment of financial liabilities and continuing financial support from Shareholders , other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ane year from the

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viahility of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ail liabilities falling due within a period of




{(xvii} The Company is not covered under CSR provisions as per criterial laid down in sub-section {5} of
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx){a} and 3{xx){b) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

(xvii) We are the statutory auditor of subsidiary companies included in the Consolidated Financiat
Statements and we have given unmodified report on financial statements of these subsidiary
companies and hence clause 3 {xxi} of the order is not applicable.

For P § Upadhye & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration No.:128679W

C il

CA Padmanabh S Upadhye
Proprietor

Membership No.: 127913
UDIN: 22127913AIRCJES551

Place: Pune
Date: May 9, 2022
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ANNEXURE 8 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph !l (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited on the
ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022])

Report on the Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nagapattinam
Energy Private Limited (“the Company”} as of 31% March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal

Financial Controls With reference to financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and officient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent appiicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. 2 S




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that: '

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.,

Opinion:

The Company has acquired land to be ultimately used in implementation of port and power project by its
holding company. The Company is not having documented formal process of risk assessment and related
controls relating to its setup phase and future business processes but all the possible risk are adequately
mitigated through effective control by personal supervision of Board of Directors.

In our opinion, Considering the small sized business entity and related operations and achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria and to the to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal control with




components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P S Upadhye & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No.:128679W .

CA Padmanabh § Upadhye
Proprietor

Membership No.: 127913
UDIN; 22127913AIRCIESS51

Place: Pune
Date: May 9, 2022



s MAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

. BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 20221
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and Equipments 1.1 8,49,26,371 8,49,26,371
(b} Capital work-in-progress (0.25) 12,42,23,224
{c) Financial Assets
Investments 1.2 12,41,14,547 12,57,44,408
(d) Others Assets 1.3 30,000 30,000
20,90,70,918 33,49,24,003
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivaients 1.4 3,02,667 1,19,273
3,02,667 1,19,273
TOTAL 20,93,73,585 33,50,43,276
EQUITY AND LIA_BLITIES
SHAREHOLDERS FUND
(a} Equity Share Capital 15 25,00,000 25,00,000
(b) Other Equity 1.6 20,68,53,585 33,25,33,276
20,93,53,585 33,50,33,276
LIABLITIES
CURRENT LIABILTIES
Financial Liabilities
Others 1.7 20,000 10,000
20,000 10,000
TOTAL 20,93,73,585 33,50,43,276
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Notes to Accounts 4

As per our report of even date

For P S Upadhye&Co
Firm Registration No. 128679wW
Chartered Accountants - - .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited

,-/—
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Padmanabh S Upadhye “x20Ace: w’R F’Grnalmgam Sanjiv S.Puri
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 127913 DIN:00955742 DIN:09121837
Place : Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022



NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT QF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

Note No.

2021-22

2020-21

Vi

Vil

Vil

X

INCOME

Revenue from Operation
Other Income

TOTAL INCOME {1+11)

EXPENSES
Depreciation

Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES {IV)

LOSS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (Hi-1v)
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (Refer note 4.12)
i)Provision for Impairment in value of Capital Work in
Progress

ii)Provision for Diminution in vatue of [nvestment
LOSS BEFORE TAX (V -Vi)

TAX EXPENSES

Current year tax

Previous year Tax

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (V- Vi)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Vi +vin)

Earning per Equity Share {in Rs) {Basic and diluted)
(FaceValue of Rs 10/- each)

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Accounts

1.1
1.8

4.6

[#1)

37,733

762
27,799

37,733

28,561

(37,733)

12,42,23,224

18,68,734

(28,561)

24,25,02,859

(12,61,29,691)

(24,25,31,420)

(12,61,29,691)

{(24,25,31,420)

{12,61,29,691)

(24,25,31,420)

(504.52)

(970.13)

As per our report of even date
For P § Upadhye&Co

.Firm Registration No. 128679W

Chartered Accountants .

Padmanabh S Upadhye
Proprietor

Membership No. 127913
Place : Pune
Date : May 9, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited

Sanjiv S.Puri
Director

DiIN:09121837
Place: Pune

A
R. Poornalmgam

Director

DIN:00955742

Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022

Date : May 9, 2022




NAGAPATTINANM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022
{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

i CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax {12,61,29,691) (24,25,31,420)
Adjustments For:
Depreciation, Amertisation and obsolesence of Asset - 762
Proviston for Impairment in value of Capital Work in Progress 12,42,23,224 -
Provision for Diminution in vatue of Investment 18,68_,_734_ 24,25,02,859

. 12,60,91,958 24,25,03,621 ’
Operating Cash Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes (37,733) (27,799)

Adjustments for:
Trade& Other Receivables - -
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities 10,000 10,000 -

_ Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities {27,733) {27,798)

ii CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTHVITIES:

Advance paid to Subsidiary Companies (2,38,873) {70,000)

e A
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (2,38,873) {70,000}

iii  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Received Desmed Contribution from Holding Company 4,50,000 1,50,000
Net Cash from Financing Activities 4,50,000 1,50,000
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,83,394 52,202
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year ( Refer
Note No 1.4) 1,19,273 67,072
Cash and Cash Equivaients at the end of the year { Refer Note No
1.4) 3,02,667 1,19,273
Net Increase/[ Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,83,394 | 52,201

Note: The cash flow statement is prepared using the “indirect methed” set out in IND AS 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows".

As per our report of even date

For P § Upadhye&Co For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 128679W . Nagapattinam Enegy Private Limited
Chartered Accountants /
e .
o neer A
e o
padmanabkh S Upadhye R. Poornalingam Sanjiv 5.Puri
Proprietor : . Director Director
Membership No. 127913 ' DIN:00955742 DIN:09121837
Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022



NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022,

a) Eguity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars -

N No of Shares Amount in Rupees No of Shares Amount in Rupees
Balance as the beginning of the reporting year '2,50,000 C 0 25,00,000 | 2,50,000 25,00,000
Add: Changes during the year - - -
Balance as the end of the reporting year 2,50,000 25,00,000 2,50,000 25,00,000

b) Other Equity

(Amount in Rupees}

Particulars

Reserve and

Deemed equity

::trapilr:‘;d Compcégf:ta-nHolding Total

Earnings pany
As at April 1, 2020 (A) (49,64,395) 57,98,79,091 57.49,14,696
Adjustments:
Add: Loss for the year (24,25,31,420) (24,25,31,420)
Add: Amount received during the year _ 1,50,000 1,50,000
Total (B) (24,25,31,420) 1,50,000 (24,23,81,420)
A?‘ at March 31, 2021 (C) = (A) + {B) (24,74,95,815} 58,00,29,091 33,25,33,276
Adjustments:
Add: Loss for the year {12,61,29,691) - (12,61,29,691)
Add: Amount received during the year - 4,50,000 4,50,000
Total (D) {12,61,29,691) 4,50,000 {12,56,79,691)
As at March 31, 2022 (E) = (C} + {D} (37,36,25,506) 58,04,79,091 20,68,53,585

As per our report of even date
For P 5 Upadhye&Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 128679W

Padmanabh $ Upadhye
Proprietor
Membership No. 127913
Place: Pune '
Date : May 9, 2022

A

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited

—RPoornalingam

Director

DIN: 00955742
Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022

AL s

g - RO S

=
Sanjiv 5.Puri

Director
DIN:09121837
Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note No - 1.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars tand Furniture & Total Capital Work in
Fixtures Progress
Cost or valuation
As at April 1, 2020 8,49,26,371 44,960 § 8,49,71,331 36,67,26,083
Additions - . . -
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 8,49,26,371 44,960 | 8,49,71,331 36,67,26,083
Additions . - - -
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 8,49,26,371 44,960] 8,49,71,331 36,67,26,083
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2020 - 44,198 44,198 -
Charge for the year - 762 762 -
Impairment - - - 24,25,02,859
As at March 31, 2021 - 44,960 44,960 24,25,02,859
Charge for the year - - - -
impairment - - - 12,42,23,224
As at March 31, 2022 - 44,960 44,960 36,67,26,083
Net Block
As at April 1, 2020 8,49,26,371 762 | 8,49,27,133 36,67,26,083
As at March 31, 2021 8,49,26,371 - 8,49,26,371 12,42,23,224
As at March 31, 2022 8,49,26,371 - 8,49,26,371 -

Capital work in progress ageing as at 31 March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a perlod of

Capital Work in Progress Total
P g Les:et::n ! 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years
Project abandoned* ' - - 12,42,23,224
Less: Impairment in Value of Project - 12,42,23,224
Capital work in progress ageing as at 31 March 2021
—1
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work in Progress Total
P g Les;set:fn 1 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years
Project abandoned - 36,67,26,083
Less: Impairment in Value of Project - - 24,25,02,859 12,42,23,224
* Refer Note No. 4.12 g
(P




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note No. 1.2 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(Amount in

Rupees)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

Investment In Equity Instruments - Unquoted

In Subsidiary Companies {At Cost)
i} Best Exim Pvt Ltd

10,000 (Previous Year - 10,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid
i1} Marshall Microware Infrastructure Pvt Ltd
16,000 {Previous Year - 10,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/ each fully paid

it} Success Power & Infrastructure Put Ltd
1,90,00C (Previous Year - 1,90,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully
paid

Investment in Subsidiary - Equity Component
Best Exim Private Ltd { Quasi Equity)

Marshall Microware Pvt Ltd { Quasi Equity)

Success Power & Infraprojects Pyt Ltd { Quast Equity)

1,00,000

1,00,000

19,00,000

1,98,06,530
5,96,47,210

4,44,29,541

1,00,000

1,00,000

19,00,000

1,97,40,000
4,43,29,408

5,95,75,000

Sub Total 12,59,83,281 12,57,44,408
Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Investment * 18,68,734 -
Total Non Current investment 12,41,14,547 12,57,44,408
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 12,59,83,281 12,57,44,408
Aggregate amount of impairment of Invetsment 18,68,734 -
Financial assets carried at cost 12,41,14,547 12,57,44,408
NOTE NO. 1.3 NON CURRENT ASSETS - OTHERS
(Amount in Rupees)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Capital Advances

30,000

30,000

30,000

30,000

NOTE NO. 1.4 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

i} Balances with Bank 3,01,902 1,18,508
i) Cash on Hand 765 765
3,02,667 1,19,273
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MOTE NO, 1,5 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (CONTD)

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at As at

» March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Authorised

6,00,00,000 {Previous Year - 6,00,00,000 ) Equity shares of Rs,10/- each 60,00,00,000 £0,00,00,000
60,00,00,000 60,00,00,000

Issued , Subscribed and Paid up

2,50,000 (Previous Year - 2,50,000 } Equity shares of Rs.iO/- each 25,00,000 25,00,000

25,00,000 25,00,000

The Campany has only one class of issued shares having par value of Rs 10/- each.

Holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share,

The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital Is set-out below

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Particulars Equity Shares Amount in Equity Shares Amount in
Nurnbers Rupees Numbers Rupees
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,50,000 25,00,000 2,50,600 25,00,000
Shares issued during the year - -
Shares hought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,50,000 25,00,000 2,50,000 25,060,000

The details of Shares held by its Holding Company

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2021

Name of Share Holders

No. of Shares
held

% holding

No. of Shares
held

% holding

Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited,

2,50,000

100.00%

2,50,600

100.00%

The details of sharehoiders holding more than §% shares.

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2021

- . No. of Sh .
Name of Share Holders No. of Shares % holding 0. of Shares % holding
held held
Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited. 2,50,000 100.00% 2,50,000 100.00%

During the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date , there are no shares issued without payment being received
in cash, issued as bonus shares and shares bought back by the Company.

Shareholding Pattern of Promoters

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

% changes durin % changes
Promoter Name No of Shares % of Holding o € ?:G?yearu 9| No of Shares % of Holding { during the
year
Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited, 2,50,000 100.00% 0.00% 2,50,000 100.00% 0.00%




Note No, 1.6 OTHER EQUITY

{(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

Reserve and
Surplus

fetained Earnings

Deemed equity
Component - Total
Holding Company

As at April 1, 2020 {A)

Adjustments:

Add: Loss for the year

Add: Amount received during the year
Total (B)

As at March 31, 2021 (C} = (A) + (B}
Adiustments:

Add: Loss for the year

Add: Amount received during the year
Total {D)

As at March 31, 2022 (£} = (C) + (D)

(49,64,395)

{24,25,31,420)

57,08,79,091|  57,49,14,696

{24,25,31,420}
1,50,000 1,50,000

{24,25,31,620)

1,50,000 (24,23,81,420

(24,74,95,815)

(12,61,29,691)

58,00,29,091 33,25,33,276

- {12,61,29,691)
4,50,000 4,50,000

{12,61,29,691)

4,50,000 {12,56,79,691

{37,36,25,506)

20,68,53,585

58,04,79,091

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (CONTD)

NOTE NO. 1.7 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OFHERS

(Amount in Rupees)

As at As at

Particulars

. ) March 3%, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Provision for Expenses 20,000 10,000
20,000 10,000

NOTE NO. 1.8 OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

iy Audit Fees 20,000 10,000

ii) Other Administrative Expenses 17,733 17,798
37,733 27,799




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 202%
Corporate Information

2,

Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company incorporated in
India {CIN:U40100TN2008PTC069515) having its registered office in Chennai. The Company is
engaged in generation of electrical power and presentily not implementing any project.

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, were approved for the issues by the
Board of Directors at their Board meeting dated 9" May ,2022.

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting

_Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the of the Companies Act 2013 {"Act”) read

with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016; as amended and the other relevant
provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets and financial liabilities {including financial instruments} which have been
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting
policies stated below,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in India {Indian GAAP) requires management to make estimate and assumption that
affects the reported amount of assets, liahilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingent Liabilities on the date of the financial statements. The estimate and assumptions
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of
the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements, which in
management’s opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from the
estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future period.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies as issued from time to lime,
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 and amendments were made in Ind AS 103, Ind AS 16, Ind AS 37, Ind AS 109 and
Ind AS 106. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated these
amendments and in the opinion of the Company management the impact on these
amendments, are not expected to be material.

Current versus non-current classification
The company has classified all its assets and liabilities under current and non-current as

required by Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements. The asset is treated as current
when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; " _oms

» Held primarily for purpose of trading;
s Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from heing exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current
All liabilities are current when:

* Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

* ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of lability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets or liabilities.
Functional and presentation currency:

The Functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupees. Accordingly, all
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been shown in indian rupees,

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services
is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitied in excha nge for those goods or services.

Property, Plant and Equipment;
Freehold Land is stated at historical cost.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their original cost of acquisition including taxes,
duties, freight, other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets and excludes refundable taxes and duties.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development
stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
Capital Work- in- Progress.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment in the manner
and as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule-ll to the Act on Straight Line Method.
Depreciation on additions (disposais) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {up to) the date
on which asset is ready for use {disposed of).

At each financial year end, management reviews the residual vaiues, useful lives and method
of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and values of the same are adjusted
prospectively where needed.




: NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

3.9 Investment
Investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

The company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an investment may not be fully recoverable, If
any such indication of impairment exists, the Company make an estimate of the recoverable
amount. if the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the value of
investment, the investment is considered to be impaired and its written downs to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss
account,

3.10 Fair Value Measurement: -

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability or;
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as
follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or tiability and the
level of the fairvalue hierarchy as explained above.

3.11 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial fiability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:
i Classification:

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only......
when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the fina @$
instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at fiff

recognition




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financiai Statements for the year ended March 31, 20212
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The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
vatue through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis
of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows
characteristics of the financial asset

Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair vatue through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

!

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business
model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value with all changes recognised in profit or loss,

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On de-recognition of a firancial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss

Impairment of Financial Assets:
In accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt
instruments and trade receivables.

Financial Liabilities:

Classification:

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value. e

e




. NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
~"  Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2027--

i Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include
trade and other payables, loans and horrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments,

iii  Subsequent measurement:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

iv Derecognition of Financial Liabilities:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lTability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as a de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial Assets:

3.13

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating
units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset
or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset helongs.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of maoney and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity and potential equity
shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and
debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potenttal equity shares that are
converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from
the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential e

conversion.
@ rJ




) NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
"~ Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.14 Provision for Current and Deferred Tax: -

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Taxes are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised in the
comprehensive income or in Equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in the
comprehensive income or in Equity

Current tax:

Provision for Current tax is made on the basis of relevant provision of The Income Tax Act, 1961
as applicable to the financial year.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences hetween the cartying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date, however deferred tax asset
is not recognized in the books of accounts as a prudent accounting policy.

3.15 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when the company has present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of past event and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense related to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement/contribution towards provision made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, estimate for the provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates,

Contingent liability:
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case;

¢ When there is a possible obligation which could arise from past event and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or;

* Apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized as expense because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or;

dklr V(:J =
Contingent Liabilityare not provided and are disclosed in Notes to Accounts. A disclosure f
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation t

9 No
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a pos K'Q?@
T
(:p}_"_ o f o Q@’MACOO
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NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

]
§
E

3.16

3.17

obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of cutflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent asset:

+ Contingent asset is disclosed in case a possible asset arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date and till the date on which the financial
statements are approved, which are material in the nature and indicate the need for
adjustments in the financial statements have been considered.

Significant accounting estimate, assumptions and judgement:
Key accounting judgments’, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make
judgments’, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
standalone financial statements are as below:

a. Assessment of functional currency (Refer Note No: 3.6});

b. Recoverability of Investment in subsidiaries {Refer Note No: 3.10)

¢. Financial instruments (Refer Note No 3.11};

d. Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (Refer Note No. 3.11 and 3.12)

e. Contingencies and Provisions {Refer Note No. 3.16).

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE NO 4 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

4.4 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS {to the extent of provided far)
(_Amount In Rupees)

particul As at As at
artlcutars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
i) Contingent Liabllitles Nit il
) Commitments
Capital Commitmants Nil il

4.2 Segment Reporting :

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financlal information is available that is evaluated regulasly by the decision
maker, In assessing the performance and deciding on ailocation of resources. The Company’s decision makers are the directors. The Company has not started
any operatiens.

4.3 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

There are no Micro ang Small Enterprise suppliers as define¢ under the provisions of "Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006". There are n¢
dues to such suppliers as on March 31, 2022.

4.4 Related Party Transactions.

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship, transactions and
outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the reporting perlods, are:

name and Relationshlps of the Related Parties:

i  Key Management Personnel

Sr No{Name of the Related Party Deslgnation
1 R Poornalingam Director
7 |S Rajan Babu Director
3 |S.5.Puri ) Director

.l Entities where control exists

Sr No|Name of the Related Party

A Ultimate Holding Company
1 [ISMT Lid

A |Holding Company

1 |Tridem Port and Power Company Private Limited

B |Subsidiary Companles

1 |Best Exim Private Limited.

2 |Success Power and Infraprojects Private Limited

3 |marshal Microware Infrastructure Development Company Private Limited. J

The following transactions were carried our with the related parties In the ordinary course of business
{Amount in Rupeas)

St No [Nature of Transactions / Relationship Holding Company Subsidiary Company
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22_ 2020-21
1 |Advance Given
Best Exim Private Limited. - - 66,530 25,000
Marshal Microware [nfrastricture Development Company Private Limited. - - 1,00,133 25,000
Success Power and Infraprojects Private Lizmited - - 72,210 20,000
2 |Advance Received
Tridem Port and Power Company Private Limited 4,50,000 1,50,000 - -
3 |Qutstanding as at Balance Sheet date
{a} ladvance Given treated as investment in Subsidiary-Equity Component .
Best Exim Private Limited. - - 1,98,06,530 1,97,40,000
Marshal Microware Infrastructure Development Company Private Limited. - - 4,44,29,541 4,43,29,408
Success Power and Infraprojects Private Limited - - $,96,47,210 5,95,75,000
{b} |peemed Equity Component - Holding Company
Tridem Port and Power Company Private Limjted 58,04,79,091 58,00,29,091 -

(5 z.

e




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
“NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

4.5 Income tax expense

A

Q

4.6

The major components of income tax expenses for the year are as under;

{Amount In Rupees)

Particulars

2021-22

2020-21

I income Tax recognised in the staternent of proflt and loss
Current tax
Deferred tax
Earlier Year Tax
Total Income Tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Il Income Tax recognlsed In Other Comprehenslve Income
Deferred tax

Total Income Tax recognised in Other Comgprehensive Income

Reconcillation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year Is under:

{Amount In Rupees}

Particulars

2021-2022

2020-2021

Actounting profit before Income tax expenses
Epacted tax rates In adia (%)

Expected income tax expenses

Tax Effect of ;

Expenses not deductible
Accelerated capital allowances

Charge/(credit) in respect of previous years
Loss in respect of which deferred tax assets not recognized for the year*
Income tax expense reported

{12,61,29,691}
25.168%

{3,17,44,321)
3,17,34,824
{109)

9,606

(24,25,3%,420)
26.00%

(6,30,58,169}
6,30,50,743
73

7,353

*'In the absence of convincing evidence of future taxable profits, against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, the management has not recognised

deferred tax assets In the financial statements.

The Company has the following unused tax losses under the head Business Loss under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Based on the probable uncertainty regarding
the set off of these losses, the Company has not recognized deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet.Netails nf Tax |osses under the head business lnsses and

unabsorbed depreciation with expiry is as follows.

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Within five years 46,40,800 46,66,857
Greater than five years 2,20,520 3,13,951
No expiry 8,543 8,109
Total 48,69,863 49,88,917

Earnings per share

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in the basic and diluted earnings per share was determined as

follows:

Particuiars 2021, -2022 2020 -2021
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders (12,61,29,691)| {24,25,31,420)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding for bastc and diluted 2,50,000 2,50,000
Face Value of Equity Share {Rs} : 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Rs.} (Basic and Diluted) {504.52) {970.13)
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4,7 Flnanclal risk management
The Company’s financial liabiilties comprise matnly of trade payables and other payables, The Company’'s financlal assets comprise mainly of investments, cash
and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other recelvables,

Company has exposure to foliowing risks arising from financial instruments:
@) Credit risk

b) Liquidity risk

c) Market risk

Risk management framework

Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for estabiishment of Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible for
developing and monitering Company's risk imanagement policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. Management identifies, evaluate and analyses the
risks to which is company is exposed to and set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Management periodically reviews its risk policy and systems to assess need for changes in the poiicles to adapt to the changes in market conditions and align
the same to the business of the Company. Managerent through its interaction and training to concerned employees aims to maintain a disciplned and
constructive control environment in which concerned employees understand their roles and abligations.

a)  Creditrisk )
Credlt risk Is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial Instruments should a counterparty default on lts obligations. The Company's exposure to
eredit risk arlses primarily from amount due from subsidiaries companies and other receivables. For other financial assets, the Company minimise credit risk by

dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

b}  Liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financtal obligations due to shortage of funds, The Company's objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through available funding from sharehoider. The Company's financial liabiities are due within

one year

¢} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair vaiue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises

two types of risks;
] interest rate risk
ii) Currency risk and;

Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, trade payables, loans and other financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return

) Interest rate risk and sensitivity

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow Interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed
interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk Is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest
hearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

The company has no horrowings from banks and financial institutions.

Since the Compény does not have any financial assets or financial liabifities bearing floating interest rates, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would
not have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.

i} Forelgn currency risk and sensitivity

The Company is not exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables, The functicnai currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

4.8 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company's Capital management is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios
in‘order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through centinuing growth,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants,
The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals, loag term borrowings from Holding Company.
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4.9

o

“«
"

Falr value measurement

A} The carrying value and Fair value of Financlal assets and flabliitles by categorles are as follows :

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

Carrying value of the flnancial
assetsfIFabllitles

Fair value of the financlal
assets/(labllities

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Financial Assets at amortised cost (current)

Cash and Bank Baiances 3,02,667 1,19,273 3,02,667 1,19,273

’ Total 3,02,667 1,19,273 3,02,667 1,19,273
| Financial Liabllitles at amortised cost {current)

dther financial Liabilities 20,000 10,000 20,000 10,000

Total 20,000 10,000 20,000 10,000

B) Level wise disclosures of flnancial assets and Habllitles by categories are as follows :

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other financial assets/liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for the year ended March 31, 2021.

During the reporting peried ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 falr value measurements
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= 4,10 Disclosure of following ratlos

S e
Particulars ' ' 2021-22 Deviation |
o o arf, Ratlo Ratlo
a) {Current Ratio = Current Assets r_§,02,667.30 15,13 11.93 26.88%
Currsent Liabilities ‘ 20,000.00 16,000.00
by [|Rewrnon Equity Ratlo = Net Income {Profit after tax) (12,61,29,690.85] -ve (24,2*_@,420.0}0) e MN.A
Average Shareholder’s Equity 27,21,93,430.73 25,62,23,986.08
¢} iReturnon Capital employed = ERIT (12,61,29,690.85) -ve -ve N.A

Totat Assets - Current Liabilities 20,93,63,585.05
AR,

Ratio's which are applicable to the company, have been disclosed ¢

.1 Explanations for clause -
a. Deviation in cusrent ratio is mainly because of increase in bank balance due to advances recelved from parent company for operational use. i

2 Incase of any negative companents in fatio working, the said ratio's are considered as Not Appilcable. {N.A)

4,11 Exceptlonal ltems:

Refer Note No

g’_a_rﬂcu!ars

14,25,02,859

24,25,02,859

12,42,23,224
18,68,734
12,60,91,958

iyProvision for Impairment in value of Capitai Wark in Progréss
iijlProvision for Diminution in value of investment

e e e

432 Yhe Bolding Company{TPPCL"} alongwith the company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, had proposed to setup @ thermal power pioject and captive port in
rarwil Nadu. TPPCL had obtained the approvals for the projects including acquisition of jand but no constructiosn activity had commenced, However, on account of
subsequent adverse developmants, the TPPCL had decided not to pursue these projects. Government Is giving considerable focus 10 infrastructuse by both higher
buugetary aliocation and various other initiatives. This is expected to create muitiple opportunities teading to positive impact on projects like TRCPL.

considering inter alia present status of the project, prevailing power sector scenario, 1GNE lasting impact of Covid pandersic on the project and recoverable
armount as per the current project valuation report, the Company tnas notwithstanding the uncertaintigs has on best possible estimate basis and after considering
the impairment provision made in previous financial year, have made additiona provision for impairment of Rs. 12,42,23,224,:'- of the amount invested in
Capital Work in Progress and R 18,68,734/ of the amount invested in its subsidiary companies as at March 31,2022 as per Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets” and
disclosed under the head “gxceptional Item” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Considering the current scenario as referred above in respect of setup of thermal power project and captive port in Tamil Nadu,the financial statements have
peen prepared by the company management on the going concern basis,taking into account commitment of financial support by the shareholders to meet out
the project expenses curfent and other liabilities.

.13 Uitimate Beneflciary : Utllisation of Borrowed funds and share prermium:

Mo funds {which are material either individually o in the aggregate} have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from porsowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other personis) of entitylies), including foreign entities
{“inte mediarias”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or stherwise, that the {ntermediary shali, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannes whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate peneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on benatf of the Ultimate geneficiaries.

N funds {which are material either individually of in the aggregate} have been received by the Company from any person(s) o entity(ies),
inciuding foreign entities (“Funding Parties”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in Writing of Otherwise, that the Company shall, directly
ar ndirectly, tend or invest in other persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on pehalf of the Funding party {"Uitimate
peneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has made disclosure in respect of additional regulatory information as required by schedule I\l of The Companies Act 2013 pusuant to MCA

4,14 P
14 otification 6.5.R 207 {E) dated 24th March 2021 to the extent applicable to the company.

4.15 Events ocourring after the Balance Sheet date
No adjusting or significant non - adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of authorisation.

4,16 Provious year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, whereves considered necessary 0 conforin to current year's classification.
As per our report of even date

For P § Upadhye & Co ' Eor and on behalf of the goard of Directors of
Furen Registration No. 128679W Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited

rhartered Accountants

R. Poornalingam

padmanabh § Upadhye sanjlv S.Puri

Proprietor Director Director
Mombership No. 127913 DIN:0Q707439 DIN:09121837
place » PUNE Place : PUNE place: Pune

Date: May 9, 2022 Date ; Miay 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022



P .S Upadhye and Co

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Nagapattinam Energy Private
Limited (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the consoiidated statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consclidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act réad with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2022, the consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated changes in equity and
its conselidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consclidated financial statements in accordance with Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.

3. Material uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded, the company has incurred

Address - 30, Patil Arcade, Near Sharada Centre, Khilare Path, Erandwane, Pune — 411004
Phone — 020-2543 0449, Mobile - 750 740 0449, email ~ psupadhye.ca@gmail.com




net cash loss during the year ended March 31, 2022 and previous years and the Company's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets as at March 31, 2022. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, the consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis for the reasons stated in the Note No. 4.12 of consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other Information comprises the information included in Company’s Annual Report, but does not
include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group, in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsibie for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financiat statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsibie for assessing the ability of each Company to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.




The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion an whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference Lo Consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consclidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our
canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial




represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the Group being private limited company,
the said clause is not applicable.

B. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Holding
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The Holding Company has no branch offices whose accounts are audited by branch auditors;

d) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {Including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and the rules prescribed there_
under, as amended; L




f)

CA Padmanabh S Upadhye
Proprietor
Membership No.: 127913
UDIN: 22127913ALWOP4463
Place: Pune

Date: May 9, 2022

On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

8) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Group's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the company being private limited
company, the said clause is not applicable.

i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Consolidated financial statements;
ii.  The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, having
any material foreseeable losses, for which provision was required.
tii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
For P $ Upadhye & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No.:128679W




ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph It {g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited on the Consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022])

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in India, as at March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended and as on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controts that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeauacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controfs over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the re!!iability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that:




1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Oplnion:

The Group has acquired fand to be ultimately used In Implementation of port and power project by its ultimate
halding company. The Group is not having documented formal process of risk assessment and related controls refating
to its setup phase and future business processes but all the possible risk is adequately mitigated through effective
vontrol by personal supervision of respectlve Board of Direclors.

In our opinion, Considering the size of the business and related operations and achievement of the objectives of the
control criteria and to the te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Group
has, in all material respects , an adeguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For P S Upadhye & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No.:128679W

CA Padmanabh S Upadhye
Proprietor

Membership No.: 127913
UDIN: 22127913A1W0OP4463
Place: Pune

Date: May 9, 2022




AGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

LK

s-ONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant and Equipments 1.1 15,67,01,018 15,67,01,018
(b) Capital Work in Progress - 12,42,23,224
{c} Goodwill on Consolidation 5,74,59,965 5,74,59,965
(d} Others Assets 1.2 30,000 30,000
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21,41,90,983 33,84,14,207
CURRENT ASSETS

{a) Financiai Assets

i) Cash and Cash equivalents 1.3 3,80,467 1,73,487

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,80,467 1,73,487
TOTAL ASSETS 21,45,71,450 33,85,87,694
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

{a) Equity Share Capital 1.4 25,00,000 25,00,000
{b} Other Equity 1.5 20,38,52,991 32,78,94,235.
TOTAL EQUITY 20,63,52,991 33,03,94,235
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILTIES
(a) Financial Liabilities

. 1) Others 1.6 82,18,459 81,93,459
TOTAL LIABILITIES 82,18,459 81,93,459
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,45,71,450 33,85,87,694
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Notes to Accounts 4

As per our report of even date

For P S Upadhye&Co
Firm Registration No. 128679W
Chartered Accountants

‘Padmanabh 5 Upadhye
Proprietor
Membership No. 127913
Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited

Director
DIN:00955742
Piace: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022

Cel

A

Sanfiv 5.Puri
Director
DIN:09121837
Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Amount in Rupees)
Particulars Note No, 2021 - 22 2020 - 21

INCOME

I Revenue from Operation
i Other ihcome . -
I TOTAL INCOME (1+11) - -

v EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortization expense 1.1 - 762
Finance Cost 1.7 1,39,322 -
Other Expenses 1.8 1,28,698 97,848
TOTAL EXPENSES (IV) 2,68,020 98,610
LOSS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (HI - (2,68,020) (98,610)
v Iv)

Vi EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Provision for impairment in value of Capital Work In 12,42,23,224 24,25,02,859
Progress (Refer Note No 4.11)

Vit LOSS BEFORE TAX (v -vl) {12,44,91,244) (24,26,01,469)
VI TAX EXPENSES - -
X LOSS FOR THE YEAR {VIi - Vill) (12,44,91,244) {24,26,01,469)
X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
Xl TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (VI + VIll) (12,44,91,244) {24,26,01,469)
XIl  |Earning per Equity Share (FaceValue of Rs 10/- each) 4.6 {497.96) (970.41)
Sighificant Accounting Policies 3
Notes to Accounts q

As per our report of even date

For P S Upadhye&Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration No. 128679W Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited

-Chartered Accountants ,

P

QLB S

Padmanabh $ Upadhye mnngam Sanjiv 5.Puri

Proprietor Director Director

Membership No. 127913 DIN:00955742 DIN:09121837

Place: Pune Place; Pune Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022
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NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Particutars 2021-22 2020-21

i CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ {Loss) Before Tax (12,44,91,244} (24,26,01,469)

Adjustments For:

Bepreciation, Amortisation and obsolesence of Asset - 162

Interest Expense 1,39,322

Provision for Impairment in value of Capital Work In Progress 12,42,23,224 24,25,02,859

12,43,62,546 24,25,03,621

Operating Cash Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes {1,28,698) (97,848)

Adjustments for:

Trade Payabies and Other Liabilities | 25,000 25,000 - -
_Income Tax {Paid ) / Refunded “ -

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (1,03,698) {97,848)

i CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: -

ili  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Paid (1,39,322)

Received Deemed Contribution from Holding Company 4,50,000 1,50,000

Net Cash from Financing Activities 3,10,678 1,50,000
Net Increase/ (Decraase) in Cash and Cash Equivalents __—__2,-06,980 ' .‘52,1?-2*
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year { Refer

Note No 1.3) 1,73,487 1,21,335
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year { Refer Note

No 1.3) 3,80,467 1,73,487
Net increase/( Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents T 2,06,980 52,152

Notes :
1 The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement is prepared using the "Indirect Method " set out in AS 3 - Statement of Cash Flows.
2 Previous year's figures have been restated, wherever necessary, to confirm to current year's classification.

As per our report of even date

For P S Upadhye&Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 128679W __ Nagapattinam Enegy Private Limited
Chartered Accountants A

i

Padmanabh S Upad.hye -’"‘"'ifdﬁdoornalingam Sanjiv S.Puri
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 127913 DIN:00955742 DiN:09121837
Place: Pune Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022




"NAGAPATTINANI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

"NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note No - 1.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Freehold Land | Furniture & Total Capital Work
Fixtures In Progress

Cost or valuation

As at April 1, 2020 15,67,01,018 44,960 ( 15,67,45,978 | 36,67,26,083

Additions - - - -

Disposals - - - -

As at March 31, 2021 15,67,01,018 44,960 | 15,67,45,978 | 36,67,26,083

Additions - - -

Disposals - - - -

As at March 31, 2022 15,67,01,018 44,960 | 15,67,45,978 | 36,67,26,083
Depreciation

As at Aprit 1, 2020 - 44,198 44,198 -

Charge for the year - 762 762 -

Impairment of assets (Refer Note
No 4.10) - 24,25,02,859

Disposals - - - -

As at March 31, 2021 - 44,960 44,960 | 24,25,02,859

Charge for the year - - -

I'mpairment of assets 12,42,23,224

Disposals - - - -

As at March 31, 2022 - 44,960 44,960 | 36,67,26,083

Net Block .

As at March 31, 2021 15,67,01,018 - 15,67,01,018 | 12,42,23,224

As at March 31, 2022 15,67,01,018 - 15,67,01,018 -
Capital work in progress ageing as at 31 March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Work in Progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years mo;z;:l: n3 Total
Project abandoned* - - - 12,42,23,224
Less: Impairment in Value of Project - - - 12,42,23,224 -
Capital work in progress ageing as at 31 March 2021
. Amount in CWIP for a period of
Capital Wo'rk In Progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years mo;:;?san 3 Total
Project abandoned® - - -36,67,26,083
- - 24,25,02,859 { 12,42,23,224

Less: Impairment in Value of Project

* i?efer Note No. 4.10




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE NO, 1.2 NON CURRENT ASSETS - OTHERS

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Capital Advances 30,000
30,000

NOTE NO. 1.3 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount In Rupeas)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and Cash Equivalents
1) Balances with Bank 3,79,702 1,72,722
ii} Cash on Hand 785
3,80,467 1,73,487

NOTE NO. 1.4 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amount in Rupees)

HREF! As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Authorised
6,00,00,000 {Previous Year- 6,00,00,000 ) Equity shares of Rs.10/- 60,00,00,000 60,00,00,000
each

60,00,00,000 60,00,00,000
Issued , Subseribed and Paid up
2,50,00¢ (Previous Year - 2,50,000} Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 25,00,000 25,00,000

25,00,000 25,00,000

The Cormnpany has only one class of issued shares having par value of Rs 10/- each.

Holder of Equity Shares Is entitled to one vote per share.

The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital is set-out helow

As at March 31, 2022 As at Miarch 31, 2021
Partlcuiars Equity Shares Amount in Equity Shares Amount In
Numbers Rupees Numbers Rupees
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,50,600 25,00,000 2,50,000 25,00,000
Shares issued during the vear - . .
Shares bought back during the year - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,50,000 25,00,300 2,50,000 25,00,000
The details of Shares held by its Holding Company
- : As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Name of Share Holders No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
held held
Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited. 2,50,000 100.00% 2,50,000 100.00%
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares.
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares No, of Shares
N f e Hol ¢ i 9 din
ame of Share Holders held % holding held % holding
Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited. 2,50,000 100.00% 2,50,000 100.00%

During the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date , there are no shares issued without payment being

-_-——,_’-"“

v

~




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Shareholding Pattern of Promoters

As at March 31, 2022

Asg at March 31, 2021

Pramoter Name

No of Shares

% changes durlng

% of Holding the year

No of Shares

% of % changos
Holding | during the yoear

Tridem Port And Power Company Private Limited.

2,50,000

100.00% 0.00%

2,50,000 100.00%

0.00%

Note No. 1.5 OTHER EQUITY

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

Resarve and

Deemed Equity

Total (B)

As at March 31, 2021 (C) = (A} + {B)
Adjustments:

Add: Loss for the year

Add: Amount received during the year
Total {D) '

Surplus Component - Total
Retalned Holding Company
Earnings
As at April 1, 2020 (A) {95,33,387) 57,98,79,091]  57,03,45,704
Adjustments:
Add: Loss for the year {24,26,01,469) - {24,26,01,469)
Add: Amount received during the year 1,50,000 1,50,000

(24,26,01,469)

1,50,000 | (24,24,51,469)

{25,21,34,856)

58,00,29,001 32,78,94,235

{12,44,91,244)

- {12,44,91,244}
4,50,000 4,50,000

(12,44,91,244)

4,50,000 | {12,40,41,244)

(37,66,26,100)

58,04,79,091 20,38,52,991

As at March 31, 2022 (E} = {C} + (D)

NOTE NO. 1.6 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Provision for Expenses
Other Liabilities
Interest Accrued and Due

35,000 20,000
1,57,000 1,47,000
80,326,450 80,26,459

82,18,459 81,93,45%

NOTE‘NO. 1.7 FINANCE COST

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2021 -2022 2020-21
Interest Expenses 1,39,322
139,322 .

NOTE NO. 1.8 Other Expenses

{Amount in Rupees}

Particulars 2021 -2022 2020-21
Audit Fees 65,000 40,000
Professional Fees 24,450 | - 22,950
Other Administrative Expenses 39,248 34,898
1,28,698 97,848




. NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.

Corporate Information

Nagapattinam Energy Private Limited ("the Holding Company") is a private limited company
incorporated in India (CIN: U40100TN2008PTC069515) having its registered office in Chennai. The
Holding Company is engaged in generation of electrical power and presently not implementing any
project. The consolidated financial statement comprises financials of the Holding company and its
subsidiaries (referred to collectively as “the Group”).

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for the
issue by the Board of Directors vide their Board Meeting dated May 9, 2022,

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financiail statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 on
“Consolidated Financial Statements” on the following principles:

a)

b)

d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlied by the Holding Company. Control exists when the
Holding Company has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its
power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability
to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which the control
ceases,

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements comprise of the financial statement of the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries referred herein in Para g below. The financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line
by line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes
and expenses after climinating intra-group balances, intra group lransaclions and
unrealized profits resuiting there from and are presented to the extent possible, in the
same manner as Lhe Holding Company Independent financial statements.

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries have been
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for fike transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to
the same reporting date as that of the Holding Company i.e., year ended March 31, 2022.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

* The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which
investment in a subsidiary is made; and

* The non-controliing interests’ share of movements in equity since the date parent
subsidiary relationship came into existence.

of subsidiaries - are shown separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss an

Statement of Changes in Equity.
B B
e
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« NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.2

3.3

3.4

e) The consolidated Financial Statements present the consolidated accounts of Nagapattinam
Energy Private Limited with its subsidiaries companies.

Sr.No Name of the Company Country of
Incorporation
i Best Exim Private Limited India

li Marshal Microware Infrastructure Development India
Private Limited
lii Success Power and Infraprojects Private Limited India

Note 1 : Ownership interest in all the Subsidiary Companies is 100%
2 : Reporting dates of all Subsidiary Companies is March 31, 2022

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
{“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016; as amended and the
other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities {including financial instruments) which have been
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting
poiicies stated below,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in India {Indian GAAP) requires management to make estimate and
assumption that affects the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
disclosure of contingent Liabilities on the date of the consolidated financial statements, The
estimate and assumptions used in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of
the consolidated financial statements, which in management’s opinion are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future period.

Standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 and amendments were made in Ind AS 103, Ind AS 16, Ind AS 37, Ind AS 109 and
ind AS 106. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated these
amendments and in the opinion of the Company management the impact on these

amendments, are not expected to be maten%




: NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.5 Current versus non-current classification

The Group has classified all its assets and liabilitles under current and non-current as required
by Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements. The asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in hormal operating cycle;

o Held primarily for purpose of trading;

» [Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current
All liabilities are current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

* =

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets or liabilities.
3.6 Functional and presentation currency:

The Functional and presentation currency of the Group is Indian rupees. Accordingly, all
amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been shown in
Indian rupees.

3.7 Revenue from contracts with customers:
Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services

is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

3.8 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Freehold Land is stated at historical cost.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their original cost of acquisition including taxes,
duties, freight, other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the

concerned assets and excludes refundable taxes and duties.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project developrent
stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under
Capital Work- in- Progress




* NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3.9

3.10

3.11

Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment in the manner and
as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule-ll to the Act on Straight Line Method.
Depreciation on additions (disposals} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {up to) the date
on which asset is ready for use (disposed of),

At each financial year end, management reviews the residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and values of the same are adjusted
prospectively where needed.

Fair Value Measurement: -

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability or;
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three
levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs {Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — inputs that are uncbservabie for the asset or liability

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:
i Classification:
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only

when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at_jnitia]

recognition - 5{)




: NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

vi

vii

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or [oss on the basis
of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows
characteristics of the financial asset

Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fait value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business
model, whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, Such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and ioss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value with alf changes recognised in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Impalrment of Financial Assets:
in accordance with Ind - AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt
instruments and trade receivables.

'
4 . et
//




; NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Financial Liabilities:
i Classification:

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such Habilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value,

it Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include
trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments.

iii Subsequent measurement:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

iv Derecognition of Financial Liabilities;

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the original Hability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

3.12  impairment of non-financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets or group of assets, called cash generating
units (CGU} may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets,

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimate of recoverable amount.

3.13  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the Holding Company and weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year, ‘ =

(P 5L
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3.13

3.14

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
the shareholders of the Holding Company and weighted average number of eguity and
potential equity shares outstanding during the vyear including share options, convertible
preference shares and debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential
equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity
shares, to the date of conversion,

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax: -

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax, Taxes are recognised in the
consolidated Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to the items
recognised in the consoiidated comprehensive income or in Equity. In which case, the tax is
also recognised in the consolidated comprehensive income or in Equity

Current tax:

Provision for Current tax is made on the basis of relevant provision of The Income Tax Act, 1961
as applicable to the financial year.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date, however deferred tax asset
is not recognized in the books of accounts as a prudent accounting policy.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when the Group has present obligation (legal or constructive} as a
result of past event and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense related to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement/contribution towards provision made,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, estimate for the provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. :
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3.15

3.16

Contingent Hability:
Contingent liability Is disclosed in the case;

* When there is a possible obligation which could arise from past event and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or;

* A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized as expense because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or;

Contingent Liability are not provided and are disclosed in Consolidated Notes to Accounts. A
disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent asset:

* Contingent asset is disclosed in case a possible asset arises from past evenis and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date and till the date on which the consolidated
financial statements are approved, which are material in the nature and indicate the need for
adjustments in the ¢onsolidated financial statements have been considered.

Significant accounting estimate, assumptions and judgement:
Key accounting judgments’, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires the management to make
judgments’, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and fabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements are as below:

Assessment of functional currency (Refer Note No: 3.6);

Financial instruments (Refer Note No 3.11);

impairment of financial and non-financial assets {Refer Note No. 3.11 and 3.12)
Contingencies and Provisions (Refer Note No. 3.15).

T oo o

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

= {.




NAGAPATTINAM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
INOTES CONSOLIDATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE"NO 4 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
4.1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent of provided for)
. (Amount In Rupees)
Particulars Il As at As at

A March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

i} Contingent Liabilities Nil NIl

i) Commitments
Capital Commitments Nil Nil

4.2 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated
regufarly by the decision maker, in assessing the performance and deciding on allocation of resources. The Group's decision makers are
the directors. The Group has not yet started any operations.

4.3 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise suppliers as defined under the provisions of "Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006", There are no dues to such suppliers as on March 31, 2022.

4.4 Related Party Transactions,

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related party relationship,
transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during
the reporting periods, are;

Name and Relationships of the Related Parties:

I Key Management Personnel

$r NoName of the Related Party Designation
R. Poornalingam Director
2 |S. Rajan Babu Director
3 [SSPuri Director

Il Entities where control exists

Sr No|{Name of the Related Party

A |Ultimate Holding Company
1 {ISMT Ltd

B |Holding Company
1 |Tridem Port and Power Company Private Limited

The following'transactions were carried our with the related parties in the ordinary course of business
' (Amount in Rupees)

Sr No |Nature of Transactions / Relationship Holding Company
' 2021 -22 2020 - 21

1 |Advance Received
Tridem Port and Power Company Private Limited 4,50,000 1,506,000

2 |Outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

(a) |Deemed Equity Component - Holding Company
Tridem Port and Power Corhpany Private Limited 58,04,79,091 75‘8,0{‘)',29,091

= Sk |
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4.5 Income tax expense

" A The major components of income tax expenses for the year are as under:

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2021 - 22 2020- 21
I Income Tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax - -
Deferred tax " -
Earlier Year Tax - -
Total Income Tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss - -
W Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax - )
Total Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - -
B Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is under:
{Amount in Rupees)
Particulars 2021-22 2020 - 21

Accounting profit before income tax expenses

Enacted tax rates in India (%)

Expected income tax expenses

Tax Effect of :

Expenses not deductible

Accelerated capital allowances

Loss in respect of which deferred tax assets not racognized for the year*
Income tax expense reported

{12,44,91,244)

{24,26,01,469)

25.168% 26,00%
(3,13,31,957)|  (6,30,76,382)
3,12,64,501 6,30,50,743
(113) 73
67,569 25,566

*'In the absence of convincing evidence of future taxable profits, against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, the Group
‘management has not recognised deferred tax assets in the consolidated financial statements.

€ The Group has the following unused tax losses under the head Business Loss under the Income Tax Act, 1961.Based on the probable

uncertainty regarding the set off of these losses, the Group has not recognized deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet:

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Within five years 1,63,51,902 2,18,27,929
Greaterthan five years 7,18,665 6,55,262
No expiry 8,543 8,109
Total 1,70,79,110 2,24,91,300

4.6 Earnings per share

Net profit available to equity holders of the Group used in the basic and diluted earnings per share was determined as follows:

Particulars 2021 - 22 2020 -21

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders {12,44,91,244)| (24,26,01,469)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding for basic and diluted 2,50,000 2,50,000
Nominal Value of equity Share (Rs) 10 10
Earnings Per Share {Rs.) (Basic and Diluted) (497.96) {970.41)

(e




4.7 Financlal risk management

a)

b)

c)

ii)

The Group's financlal liabilities comprise malnty of trade payables and other payables. The Group’s financial assets comprlse mainly of
Anvestments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other receivables.

Group has exposure to following risks arising from financial Instruments:
a) Credit risk

b} Liguidity risk

) Market risk

Risk managemant framework

Group's board of directors has overall responsihility for establishment of Group’s risk management framework. Management is
responsible for developing and monitoring Group’s risk management policies, under the guidance of Audit Committee. Management
identifies, evaluate and analyses the risks to which Group is exposed to and set appropriate risk limits and contrels to monitor risks
and adherence to Hmits.

Management periodically reviews its risk policy and systems to assess need for changes in the policies to adapt to the changes In
market conditions and align the same to the business of the Group. Management through its interaction and training to concerned
employees aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which concerned employees understand their roles

and obligations.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments shoutd a counterparty default on its obligations, The

Group's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from other receivables. For other financial assets, the Group minimise credit risk by
dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

Liguidity risk.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds, The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through available funding from shareholder. The

Group's financial liabilities are due within one year

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises two types of risks:

i) Interest rate risk
i) Currency risk and;

Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, trade payables, loans and other financial instruments,

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing
the return

Interest rate risk and sensitivity

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes
in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

The Group has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions.

Since the Group does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities bearing floating interest rates, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Foreign currency risk and sensitivity

The Group is not exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables. The functional currency of the Group is
Indian Rupees.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

¥



4.8 -Capltal Management

For the purpose of the Group’s capilal management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the

.quity holders of the Holding Company. The primary objective of the Group's Capital management is to safeguard continuity, maintain a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adeguate return to shareholders through
continuing growth.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. The funding requirement is met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals, long term borrowings from Holding
Company.

4.9 Falr value measurement

A) The carrying value and Fair value of Financlal assets and liabllities by categories are as follows :
{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Carrying value of the financial Fair value of the financial
assets/liabilities assets/liabilities
As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Financial Assets at amortised cost {current)
Cash and Bank Balances 3,80,467 1,73,487 3,80,467 1,73,487

3,80,467 1,73,487 3,80,467 1,73,487

Tota}

Financlal Liabilities at amortised cost (current)
Other financial Liabilities | 82,18,459 81,93,459 82,18,459 81,93,459

82,18,459 81,93,459 82,18,459 81,93,459

Total

B) Level wise disclosures of financial assets and liabllities by categories are as follows !

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, frade payables and other financial assets/liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with
those used for the year ended March 31, 2021.

During the reporting period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, there were no transfers betwaen level 1, level 2 and level 3 fair
vazlue measurements
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4.10

4,11

4.12

4,13

4.14

The Group alonwit: Its Relding Company {TPECL"}, had proposed to set up a thermal power project and captive port in Tamil Nadu, TPPCL had ohtalned the
approvals for the projects Ingluding acqulsition of land but no constructlon activity had commenced, However, on account of subsequent adverse developments,
the TPPCL haet decided not to pursue these projects, The COVID pandemic 1s expected Lo have wide-ranging long-terrs impact on project activity. Government Is
ghving considerable focus 1o infrastructure by both higher budgetary allocation and varlous other Infiatives. This 15 expected to create multiple opportunities
ieading to positive impact on projects like TPCPL. The Government Is also glving huge push to Infrastructure activity which augurs weil for TPPCL.

Considering Inter alia present status of the project, prevailing power seclor scenario, long lasting impact of Covid pandernic on the project and racoverable amaunt
as per the cutrent projact valuation report, the Company bas nolwithstanding Lthe uncertainties has on best possible estimate basis and after considering the
impairment provision made in previous financial year, have made additional provision for impalrment of Rs, 12,42,23,224/- of the amount invested In Capital
Work In Progress as at March 31,2022 as per ind AS 36 “Impalement of Assets” and disclosed under the head “Exceptional ltem” in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Considering the currenl scenario as referred above In respect of setup of thermal fower project and captive port in Tamil Nadu,the financial statements have baen
prepared by the Holding company management on the going concern basis, taklng inta account commitrment of financiat support by the shareholders to meet out
the project expenses, current and other llabliitles.

Ultimate Beneficiary : Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

No funds {which are material elther individually or in the aggregate} have been advanced or loaned or wested {elther from borrowed funds or share premium or
ary other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate eneficiarles.

No funds (which are material either individualiy or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s} or entity(ies), Including forelgn
entities ("Funding Partles”), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or Indirectly, lend or Invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secority or the
like on hehalf of the Ultimate Reneficiarios,

The Company has made disclosure In respect of additional regulatory information as required by schedule I of The Companiey Al 2003 pusiant 19 MEA
notification G.5.R 207 {F) dated 24th March 2021 1o the extent applicable to the company.

Events accurring after the Balance Sheet date
No adjusting or significant non - adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of authorisation.
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year’s classification,

As per our report of even date

Fer P 5 Upadhye & Co Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No, 128679W ‘ Nagapttinam Energy Private Limited
Chartered Accountants QP e

- [y

/f(;-;;;a/llngam Sanjiv S,Puri

Padmanabh 5 Upadhye

Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 127913 - DIN:00955472 DIN:0S121837
Place : PUNE Place : PUNE Place : Pune

Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022 Date : May 9, 2022
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